

Work Order User Guide



Managing and processing work orders

www.buildingengines.com | (866) 301-5300 | support@buildingengines.com



Table of Contents

Work Order Management
Creating a New Work Order
Creating a Scheduled Work Order
Creating a Recurring Work Order
Searching for an Existing Work Order6
Searching for a Scheduled Work Order 7
Searching for a Cancelled Work Order7
Searching for a Recurring Work Order8
Editing a Work Order
Associating a Geolocation to a Work Order8
Removing a Gelocation from a Work Order9
Changing the Status of a Work Order9
Canceling a Work Order10
Canceling a Recurring Work Order11
Canceling a Recurring Work Order11 Reassigning a Work Order
Canceling a Recurring Work Order
Canceling a Recurring Work Order
Canceling a Recurring Work Order11Reassigning a Work Order12Placing a Work Order On Hold13Printing a Work Order13Printing an Invoice14
Canceling a Recurring Work Order11Reassigning a Work Order12Placing a Work Order On Hold13Printing a Work Order13Printing an Invoice14Adding Charges to Multiple Entities on a Single Work Order (Split Billing)15
Canceling a Recurring Work Order11Reassigning a Work Order12Placing a Work Order On Hold13Printing a Work Order13Printing an Invoice14Adding Charges to Multiple Entities on a Single Work Order (Split Billing)15Invoicing Multiple Entities from a Single Work Order (Split Billing)16
Canceling a Recurring Work Order11Reassigning a Work Order12Placing a Work Order On Hold13Printing a Work Order13Printing an Invoice14Adding Charges to Multiple Entities on a Single Work Order (Split Billing)15Invoicing Multiple Entities from a Single Work Order (Split Billing)16Sharing a Work Order16
Canceling a Recurring Work Order11Reassigning a Work Order12Placing a Work Order On Hold13Printing a Work Order13Printing an Invoice14Adding Charges to Multiple Entities on a Single Work Order (Split Billing)15Invoicing Multiple Entities from a Single Work Order (Split Billing)16Sharing a Work Order16Linking a Work Order to a Piece of Equipment17
Canceling a Recurring Work Order11Reassigning a Work Order12Placing a Work Order On Hold13Printing a Work Order13Printing an Invoice14Adding Charges to Multiple Entities on a Single Work Order (Split Billing)15Invoicing Multiple Entities from a Single Work Order (Split Billing)16Sharing a Work Order16Linking a Work Order to a Piece of Equipment17Adding a File to a Work Order18
Canceling a Recurring Work Order11Reassigning a Work Order12Placing a Work Order On Hold13Printing a Work Order13Printing an Invoice14Adding Charges to Multiple Entities on a Single Work Order (Split Billing)15Invoicing Multiple Entities from a Single Work Order (Split Billing)16Sharing a Work Order16Linking a Work Order to a Piece of Equipment17Adding a File to a Work Order18Adding a Comment to a Work Order18
Canceling a Recurring Work Order11Reassigning a Work Order

This document is confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or property management organization authorized by Building Engines, Inc. Not for public distribution or disclosure.

Work Order Management

The Work Order module allows both property management employees and tenants to submit work orders for occupied spaces and common areas. Once you submit a work order, you have the ability to track the lifecycle of the work order, add files, view comments, and generate invoices.

This user guide describes the process of creating a work order from the desktop version of the Building Engines application.

Creating a New Work Order

This section describes the process of creating a new work order.

To create a work order:

- 1. Click Go To > Work Orders > Create Work Order.
- 2. Select a **BUILDING**, **TENANT**, **ISSUE TYPE**, and **FLOOR / SUITE**.

GO TO ADMIN	~5	Enter Request Number	🔎 Support 🌖 💆
Create Work Ore	der		٢
BUILDING • T1 - Berkshire Crossing TENANT • **Self Reported V	CREATE Immediately PHONE (555)555-5555	DETAILS* B I U Ix T L	s- ∂-∂ Q, ¢> ≝
REQUESTED BY * Carl Dahl ISSUE CATEGORY	EXTENSION FAX		
Select V ISSUE TYPE • Select V	EMAIL		
FLOOR / SUITE * Berkshire Crossing	Critical	Char	acters (including HTML): 0 (Limit: 4000)
ASSIGN TO Unassigned	GEOLOCATION SET GEOLOCATION	UPLOAD FILES	

- 3. (Optional) Enter a specific **LOCATION** and assignee.
- 4. (Optional) Click **Keep me informed** to be notified when updates are made to the work order.
- 5. (Optional) Click **Critical** to mark the work order as critical on the work order search grid and to change the header color to red.
- 6. (Optional) Associating a geolocation to a work order can help mobile users locate a work order created in a large open area such as a parking lot or rooftop. To associate a set of geolocation coordinates to a work order:

3 www.buildingengines.com | (866) 301-5300 | support@buildingengines.com 📣 BuildingEngines

- a. Click SET GEOLOCATION
- b. Using the **GEOLOCATION** map, move the crosshairs over the exact location of the problem and click **SET GEOLOCATION**.
- c. Click **SAVE**.
- 7. Enter the **DETAILS** of the work order.
- 8. Click **SAVE** or **SAVE AND SHARE** to save and email a PDF of the work order.

Creating a Scheduled Work Order

This section describes the process of creating a scheduled work order.

To create a scheduled work order:

- 1. Click Go To > Work Orders > Create Work Order.
- 2. Select a **BUILDING**, **TENANT**, **ISSUE TYPE**, and **FLOOR / SUITE**.
- 3. (Optional) Enter a specific **LOCATION** and **ASSIGN TO**.
- 4. Using the **CREATE** field, select **Scheduled**.

GO TO ADMIN			✓ ■ S	earch for a building	Q
Create Wor	k Order				
BUILDING * T1 - Berkshire Crossing	~	CREATE Scheduled	~	DETAILS*	- 8 0 1
TENANT * **Self Reported	~	DATE/TIME * 06/14/2017 07:30 AM		T H	
Carl Dahl		CREATE WO IN ADVANCE 0 Mins	~		
ISSUE CATEGORY Select	~	PHONE (555)555-5555			

- 5. Click the iii icon and select the **DATE / TIME** that the work order is to be created.
- 6. (Optional) To provide the assignee up to an hour of advanced notice of the work order, select a **CREATE WO IN ADVANCE** time.
- 7. (Optional) Click **Keep me informed** to be notified when updates are made to the work order.
- 8. (Optional) Click **Critical** to mark the work order as critical on the work order search grid and to change the header color to red.

⁴ www.buildingengines.com | (866) 301-5300 | support@buildingengines.com 📣 BuildingEngines

- 9. (Optional) Associating a geolocation to a work order can help mobile users locate a work order created in a large open area such as a parking lot or rooftop. To associate a set of geolocation coordinates to a work order:
 - a. Click SET GEOLOCATION
 - b. Using the **GEOLOCATION** map, click **SET GEOLOCATION** when the crosshairs are over the exact location of the problem being reported.
 - c. Click SAVE.
- 10.Enter the **DETAILS** of the work order.
- 11.Click **SAVE.**

Creating a Recurring Work Order

This section describes the process of creating a recurring work order.

To create a recurring work order:

- 1. Click Go To > Work Orders > Create Recur. Work Order.
- 2. Select a **BUILDING**, **COMPANY**, **FLOOR / SUITE**, and **ISSUE TYPE**.

GO TO ADMIN		Search for a building	🔎 Support 💿 본
🛠 Create Recurring	Work Order		\oplus (
BUILDING • T1 - Berkshire Crossing \checkmark COMPANY • **Self Reported \checkmark REQUESTED BY • Carl Dahl FLOOR / SUITE • Berkshire Crossing \checkmark LOCATION	TASK TYPE Recurring Work Order ISSUE TYPE * Select TIME * 08:00 AM CREATE WO IN ADVANCE 0 Mins RECURRENCE * Select	DETAILS* B I Tx T	<u>U</u> 5 Ø ∂ Q Q ≝ E
ASSIGN TO Unassigned			Characters (including HTML): 0 (Limit: 4000)

SAVE

- 3. Confirm that the **TASK TYPE** is **Recurring Work Order**.
- 4. Select an **ISSUE TYPE**.
- 5. Enter the **TIME** you want the recurring work order to be created.

- 6. (Optional) Select a **CREATE WO IN ADVANCE** time to give the assignee advance notice.
- 7. Enter the frequency in the **RECURRENCE** field.
- 8. (Optional) Enter work order **DETAILS**.
- 9. Click SAVE.

Searching for an Existing Work Order

You can search for existing work orders using the work order search filters or by the work order number. This section describes the process of searching for an existing work order using search filters and the request number.

To search for an existing work order using the search filters:

- 1. Click Go To > Work Orders > Work Order Dashboard.
- 2. Use the **SEARCH** and/or column filters.

(1	<u>۱</u>	GO TO	ADMIN	1						~	Search for a	building		Q	Support	•	•
4	~	Wor	k Ord	lers											(\oplus	‡ ‡ ਟ
0	Search	n Criteria	: Building	g(s): T1 - Berkshi	re Crossino) 👌 and 2 d	other(s)										8
	Sea	arch Re	esults F	iltering													~
? s	SEARCH	Reque	st #	> DEFAULT	VIEW	Save View	w					-5 AC	TIONS 🗸	< SHAR	E 🗸 🗹	EXPORT	T V
	TYPE	⊕ RE	QUEST	BUILDING	CATEGOR	ISSUE TYPE	COMPANY 💿	FLOOR	SUITE	DETAILS	ASSIGNEE .	STATUS @	CREATED 🗸	CHARGES	FLAG	ACK	<
	Filter	Filter		Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter	

3. Enter your search parameters into the work order filters and click **SEARCH**.

To search for an existing work order by work order number:

- 1. Navigate to the Universal Building and Task Search.
- 2. Select the Work Order icon, enter a valid work order number, and click the icon.

GO TO ADMIN	*	Search	n for a bu	ilding			Q	Sup	oport	•	•
BuildingEngines	*										¢
Type to filter SORT BY A-Z		×~	Ψ.	<1>	Q	Ö	Ŷ	Ö			
T2 - 35 Main Street	NEW/OF EN	7	183	5	1	0	3	0	0	0	0

Searching for a Scheduled Work Order

You can search scheduled work orders using the work order search filter. This section describes the process of searching for a scheduled work order.

To search for a scheduled work order:

- 1. Click Go To > Work Orders > Work Order Dashboard.
- 2. Click **SEARCH**.
- 3. Using the **STATUS** field, select **Scheduled**.

BUILDINGS - 1		STATUS			SEARCH DETAILS/HIS	TORY	
T1 - Berkshire Crossing	~	0 Selected		~			
COMPANY		✓ Check all		8			
All		Scheduled			Only Search Detai	ls	energia esta
		New					
SUITE		Open 🔲			DATE CREATED / SCH	EDULED	
All Berkshire Des		Completed			*Recent		0.00 🗸
ASSIGNEE		Closed			12/04/2014	06/12/2017	
All	~	Cancelled					
ISSUE TYPE		FLOOR			DATE COMPLETED		
All	~		71.0	-			×
	ou mournan	CHARGES	THE GIG	Levente new			(III)
All Berkshire Res		PloSed \$ 0.00	to Greek	\$ 0.00	New	05/03/ 5	0.00
					DATE CLOSED / CANC	ELLED	
TENANT SATISFACTION	ou Meetin						10.00
All	×						(iii)
						SEARCH	CANCEL

4. Enter your search parameters and click **SEARCH**.

Searching for a Cancelled Work Order

Cancelled work orders can be found using the work order search filters. This section describes the process of searching for a cancelled work order.

To search for a cancelled work order:

- 1. Click **Go To > Work Orders > Work Order Dashboard**.
- 2. Click **SEARCH**.
- 3. Using the **STATUS** field, select **Cancelled**.
- 4. Enter relevant search parameters and click **SEARCH**.

Searching for a Recurring Work Order

Separate from regular and scheduled work orders, recurring work orders have their own dedicated dashboard. This section describes the process of searching for a recurring work order.

To search for a recurring work order:

- 1. Click Go To > Work Order > Recurring Work Order Dashboard.
- 2. Click **SEARCH** and use the fields to enter your search parameters.
- 3. Click **SEARCH** to execute a search.

Editing a Work Order

Following the creation of a work order, and if you have the necessary permissions, you have the ability to edit the original work order details. This section describes the process of editing an existing work order.

To edit a work order:

- 1. Click **Go To > Work Orders > Work Order Dashboard**.
- 2. Use the **SEARCH** and/or column filters to locate the work order.
- 3. From the **Work Orders** grid, click the **REQUEST** number hyperlink.
- 4. Click **Edit Details** and use the fields to edit the work order.
- 5. Click **SAVE**.

Associating a Geolocation to a Work Order

Gelocation coordinates can be added to a work order at the time of creation or after the work order has been opened. Associating a geolocation to a work order can help mobile users locate a work order created in a large open area such as a parking lot or rooftop. This section describes the process of associating a geolocation to an existing work order.

To associate a set of geolocation coordinates to an existing work order:

- 1. Click **Go To > Work Orders > Work Order Dashboard**.
- 2. Use the **SEARCH** and/or column filters to locate the work order.
- 3. From the **Work Orders** grid, click the **REQUEST** number hyperlink.
- 4. Click the **Edit Details** section to expand.
- 5. Scroll down and click SET GEOLOCATION

6. Using the **GEOLOCATION** map, move the crosshairs over the exact location of the problem and click **SET GEOLOCATION**.

Edit Details	Geolocation	1
ISSUE CATEGORY	S*	
Quick List	Map • I U S	8 8 9 9 1 T.
ISSUE TYPE *		
Cleaning	Rolan Ann Rd St. Soe	
COMPANY *	aning needed	
BE Building Services		
REQUESTED BY *	Randall Rd	
Skywalker, Luke	Roland Rd	
LOOR / SUITE *		
Floor 4, 550	Nell Rec 2 -	
OCATION	Google Kan Map data @2017 Google Terms of Use Report a map error	
N/A	WORK SUMMARY	haracters (including HTML): 15 (Limit: 4000)
BEOLOCATION	▼ SET GEOLOCATION	
SET GEOLOCATION	Geolocation has not been set.	
	SAVE CANCEL	SAVE

7. Click SAVE.

Removing a Gelocation from a Work Order

If a geolocation was incorrectly associated to a work order it can be cleared and reassociated with a new set of geolocation coordinates. This section describes the process of removing the geolocation coordinates from a work order.

To remove the geolocation coordinates from a work order:

- 1. Click **Go To > Work Orders > Work Order Dashboard**.
- 2. Use the **SEARCH** and/or column filters to locate the work order.
- 3. From the **Work Orders** grid, click the **REQUEST** number hyperlink.
- 4. Click the **Edit Details** section to expand.
- 5. Scroll down the the geolocation map and click CLEAR
- 6. Click **SAVE**.

Changing the Status of a Work Order

This section describes the process of changing the status of a work order.

To change the status from the Work Orders grid:

- 1. Click **Go To > Work Orders > Work Order Dashboard**.
- 2. Select the work orders you want to update.
- 3. Click the **ACTIONS** dropdown and select **Change Status**.

	Work Orders (\pm)												
	Search Results Filtering												
$\mathbf{\hat{\mathbf{Y}}}$	SEARCH Req	uest #	> DEFAULT	VIEW 🗸	Save View				🖌 actions 🗸 🗸	< SHAR	E 🗸 🖄	EXPORT 🗸 🗸	
	TYPE 💿	REQUEST	BUILDING .	ISSUE TYPE	COMPANY .	FLOOR	SUITE	DETAILS	Change Status Reassign	STATUS 💿	CREATED 🗸	CHARGES	
	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter	Print Selected	Filter	Filter	Filter	
	*	288450772	Berkshire Crossing	Interior Lights	BE Building Services	4	550	Lights out in the lobby	Invoice Selected Dahl	Open	12/08/2014	\$7.50	
	*	287705848	Berkshire Crossing	Light Bulbs	{BEI DEMO - CARL}	8	800	3 bulbs need replaced in the back	Carl Carl	Open	12/04/2014	\$0.00	
•	*	266432797	Berkshire Crossing	Electrical	BEI Technologie	1	100A	There is a outlet that has stopped	Johnson	Open	09/25/2014	\$0.00	

4. Select a work order STATUS, add an optional comment, and click SAVE.

To change the status from within the work order:

1. Click CHANGE STATUS.



2. Select a work order **STATUS**, add an optional comment, and click **SAVE**.

Canceling a Work Order

If a work order is made in error or you no longer need the service, either the property management employee or the tenant who originally submitted the work order can cancel it.

To cancel a work order:

- 1. Click Go To > Work Orders > Work Order Dashboard.
- 2. Use the **SEARCH** and/or column filters to locate the work order.
- 3. From the **Work Orders** grid, click the **REQUEST** number hyperlink.
- 4. Click **CHANGE STATUS**.
- 5. From the **STATUS** dropdown, select **Cancelled**.

ASSIGNE	D TO:	Unassigned	FLOOR:			4							
ISSUE TYI FLAG:	Change S	tatus										\otimes	
STATUS:	STATUS Cancelled	open	×	COMMEN	т				_				
Details.	FLAG No Flag			В	<u> </u>	5 0		© ≝	<u>T</u> _x (тш		-	💼 PRI
P Edit I	Details												
\$ Purc	hase Order												Ð
🛴 Labo	r and Mate											6	98
🔁 Equip	ument		l	Keep of Critica	comment I	internal							Ð
] Files	D						SAV	/E \$	SAVE AN	ID ADVA	NCE C	ANCEL	Ð
n Hietz	NU LAST ACT	/ITV- 06/10/0017 1-	26 DM EDT										b A

6. Click SAVE.

Canceling a Recurring Work Order

If a recurring work order is made in error or you no longer need the service, the property management employee can cancel all future occurrences from the Recurring Work Oder Dashboard.

To cancel a recurring work order:

- 1. Click Go To > Work Orders > Recurring Work Order Dashboard.
- 2. Use the **SEARCH** and/or column filters to locate the recurring work order.
- 3. From the **Recurring Work Orders** grid, select a recurring work order.
- 4. Click **DELETE**, and then confirm by clicking **OK**.

Reassigning a Work Order

This section describes the process of reassigning a work order from the Work Order grid and from within the work order.

To reassign from the Work Orders grid:

- 1. Select the work orders you want to reassign using the check boxes located to the left of the work order(s).
- 2. Click the **ACTIONS** dropdown and select **Reassign**.

-	Work Orders $(+)$											
	Search Results Filtering											
$\mathbf{\mathbf{\hat{Y}}}$	SEARCH Req	uest #	> DEFAUL	T VIEW	Save View			✓ AC	TIONS V	< SHARE	V 🗠 EXPO	DRT 🗸
	TYPE 💮	REQUEST	BUILDING .	ISSUE TYPE	COMPANY 💿	FLOOR	SUITE	DET/ Change	e Status	STATUS 💮	CREATED 🗸	CHARGES
	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter Print S	elected	Filter	Filter	Filter
	*	288450772	Berkshire Crossing	Interior Lights	BE Building Services	4	550	Lights Invoice in the lobby	Selected Dahi	Open	12/08/2014	\$7.50
•	*	287705848	Berkshire Crossing	/ Light Bulbs	{BEI DEMO - CARL}	8	800	3 bulbs need replaced in	Carl ^d Dahl	Open	12/04/2014	\$0.00

- 3. Select an assignee, notification method, and enter a message if applicable.
- 4. Click **SAVE**.

To reassign from within the work order:

1. Click **REASSIGN**.

🥠 GO TO 🛛 A	DMIN		Search for a	building	🔎 Support 🌖 💆
#8422 Berkshire	258098 - Inte Crossing - {BEI DEI	erior Lights MO-CARL}			\oplus
ASSIGNED TO: ISSUE TYPE: FLAG: STATUS:	Unassigned Interior Lights No Flag - New	BUILDING: COMPANY: FLOOR: SUITE: LOCATION:	Berkshire Crossing {BEI DEMO - CARL} N/A Berkshire Crossing Lobby	CREATED: SERVICE LEVEL: MUST OPEN BY:	06/13/2017 07:14 AM Priority 2 06/13/2017 08:29 AM
Details:	Lights need repla	aced	CHANGE STATUS	E 🚺 ADD COMMENT	II HOLD < SHARE 📅 PRINT

- 2. Select an assignee, notification method, message preferences, and enter a message if applicable.
- 3. Click **SAVE**.

Placing a Work Order On Hold

Placing a work order on hold pauses the service level agreement clock. This prevents the work order from entering an overdue status and potentially sending out escalation alerts. This section describes the process of placing a work order on hold.

To place a work order on hold:

- 1. Click Go To > Work Orders > Work Order Dashboard.
- 2. Use the **SEARCH** and/or column filters to locate the work order.
- 3. From the **Work Order** grid, click the **REQUEST** number hyperlink.
- 4. Click **HOLD**.

🥻 GO TO 🗛	GO TO ADMIN			a building	🔎 Support 😐 🖓
#8422 Berkshire	258098 - Inte Crossing - {BEI DEM	erior Lights MO-CARL}			(\pm)
ASSIGNED TO: ISSUE TYPE: FLAG: STATUS:	Unassigned Interior Lights No Flag - New	BUILDING: COMPANY: FLOOR: SUITE: LOCATION:	Berkshire Crossing {BEI DEMO - CARL} N/A Berkshire Crossing Lobby	CREATED: SERVICE LEVEL: MUST OPEN BY:	06/13/2017 07:14 AM Priority 2 06/13/2017 08:29 AM
Details:	Lights need repla	ced	CHANGE STATUS	LE 🚺 ADD COMMENT	II HOLD < SHARE 🔠 PRINT

- 5. Provide a reason for placing the work order on hold and click **SAVE**.
- 6. To resume work on the work order, click **RESOLVE HOLD**.

Printing a Work Order

This section describes the process of printing a work order from the Work Orders grid and from within the work order.

To print a work order from the Work Orders page:

- 1. Click Go To > Work Orders > Work Order Dashboard.
- 2. Select the work orders you want to print using the check boxes located to the left of the work order(s).

3. Click the **ACTIONS** dropdown and select **Print Selected**.

	Work Orders (\pm)										
	Search Results Filtering										
9	SEARCH Req	uest #	> DEFAUL	T VIEW	Save View			🗲 ACTIONS 🗸	< SHARE	V 🗠 EXP	ort 🗸
	TYPE 💮	REQUEST	BUILDING 💮	ISSUE TYPE	COMPANY .	FLOOR	SUITE	DETA Change Status	STATUS 💮	CREATED 🗸	CHARGES
	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter Print Selected	Filter	Filter	Filter
Ø	*	288450772	Berkshire Crossing	Interior Lights	BE Building Services	4	550	Lights Invoice Selected in the lobby Dahi	Open	12/08/2014	\$7.50
¥	*	287705848	Berkshire Crossing	/ Light Bulbs	{BEI DEMO - CARL}	8	800	3 bulbs need replaced in Dahl	Open	12/04/2014	\$0.00

To print from within the work order:

- 1. Navigate to the top section of the work order.
- 2. Click **PRINT**.

СЛ GO TO	ADMIN		Search for	a building	🔎 Support 🔵 🏒
#8422 Berkshire	258098 - Inte e Crossing - {BEI DE	erior Lights MO - CARL}			\oplus)
ASSIGNED TO: ISSUE TYPE: FLAG: STATUS:	Unassigned Interior Lights – No Flag – New	BUILDING: COMPANY: FLOOR: SUITE: LOCATION:	Berkshire Crossing {BEI DEMO - CARL} N/A Berkshire Crossing Lobby	CREATED: SERVICE LEVEL: MUST OPEN BY:	06/13/2017 07:14 AM Priority 2 06/13/2017 08:29 AM
Details:	Lights need rep	aced	CHANGE STATUS	LE 🚺 ADD COMMENT	HOLD <\$ SHARE 🚖 PRINT

Printing an Invoice

This section describes the process of printing an invoice from the Work Orders grid and from within the work order.

To print a work order from the Work Orders page:

- 1. Click Go To > Work Orders > Work Order Dashboard.
- 2. Select the work orders you want to print using the check boxes located to the left of the work order(s).

3. Click the **ACTIONS** dropdown and select **Invoice Selected**.

()	() GO	TO ADMIN]					~	Search for a bu	iildir	ng		Q	Sup	oport (9
Work Orders															9)[; ?
0	Search Cr	iteria: Building	(s): T1 - Ber	kshire C	rossing	> and 2 o	other(s)										8
	Search Results Filtering								~								
$\mathbf{\mathbf{\hat{Y}}}$	SEARCH	Request #	> DEF	AULT VIEW	~	Save Vie	N			Į	5 ACTIONS	\sim	< •	SHARE	/ 🖆 🗉	XPORT	×
	TYPE @	REQUEST	BUILDING 🕒	CATEG	ISSUE T.	COMPA®	FLOOR	SUITE	DETAILS	A	Change State	sı.	REAT	CHARG	FLAG @	ACK	
	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter	Filter	Fil	Print Selecte	d	ter	Filter	Filter	Filter	
	*	790797553	Berkshir	Reso	Meeti	{BEI D	1	The Gr	Event: Ove		Invoice Selec	ted	i/20.	\$10,0			1
	*	742576750	Berkshir	Reso	Meeti	900 Te	1	The Gr	Event: E1		New	03	3/02	\$1,00		~	
•	*	803659004	Berkshir	Reso	Meeti	BEI Te	1	The Gr	Event: new		New	05	5/04	\$600			

To print an invoice from within a work order:

- 1. Navigate to the Labor and Materials section.
- 2. Click the **Print Invoice** icon.



Adding Charges to Multiple Entities on a Single Work Order (Split Billing)

If configured, Split Billing allows you to add charges, and invoice multiple entities, from within a single work order.

Note: To enable the Split Billing configuration and to learn more about this feature, reach out to your designated Client Account Manager or Building Engines Support for assistance.

This section describes the process of adding charges to multiple entities on a single work order:

- 1. From within the work order, click either \bigcirc or \bigotimes to add a labor or material.
- 2. Use the provided fields to enter the relevant labor or material information.

3. Click **Billable**, and select a **BILL TO** entity.

MARKUP		RATE			
Select Markup	~			\$ 75.0	00
NOTE		MARKI BASE 1	UP TAX: FAX:	0.00% 0.00%	
☑ Billable BILL TO +		TOTAL	:	\$150.00	
BE Building Services	~				
		SAVE	SAVE AND A	DD ANOTHER	CANCEL

- 4. Click **SAVE** or **SAVE AND ADD ANOTHER** to add additional billable labors or materials.
- 5. (Optional) Follow steps 1 4 to continue adding billable charges to a single work order.

Invoicing Multiple Entities from a Single Work Order (Split Billing)

Invoicing multiple entities from a single work order is no different than creating an invoice for a single entity. In this instance, a separate invoice is created for each entity and their associated charges.

Note: To enable the Split Billing configuration and to learn more about this feature, reach out to your designated Client Account Manager or Building Engines Support for assistance.

To invoice multiple entities from within a single work order:

- 1. Navigate to the Labor and Materials section.
- 2. Click the **Print Invoice** icon and a separate invoice is generated for each entity associated to the work order.

Sharing a Work Order

Sharing allows you to create and email a PDF of the work order. This section describes the process of sharing a work order.

To share a work order:

- 1. Click **Go To > Work Orders > Work Order Dashboard**.
- 2. Use the **SEARCH** and/or column filters to locate the work order.

3. From the **Work Order** grid, click the **REQUEST** number hyperlink.

4. Click SHARE.

🥻 GO TO 🛛 🗛	ο στο ασμίν			a building	🔎 Support 🔵 🎴
#8422 Berkshire	258098 - Inte Crossing - {BEI DEM	erior Lights MO - CARL}			\oplus
ASSIGNED TO: ISSUE TYPE: FLAG: STATUS:	Unassigned Interior Lights No Flag - New	BUILDING: COMPANY: FLOOR: SUITE: LOCATION:	Berkshire Crossing {BEI DEMO - CARL} N/A Berkshire Crossing Lobby	CREATED: SERVICE LEVEL: MUST OPEN BY:	06/13/2017 07:14 AM Priority 2 06/13/2017 08:29 AM
Details:	Lights need repla	read 🔶 Reassign 🖬	CHANGE STATUS	LE C ADD COMMENT	HOLD < SHARE 💼 PRINT

- 5. By default, the **Sender Alias**, **Subject**, and **Message** are auto-populated with work order-specific information. Clicking into any of these fields allows you to edit the information.
- 6. Select the recipients by clicking the **(+)** next to their name, or by manually adding their email into the **email address** field.
- 7. Click Send.

Linking a Work Order to a Piece of Equipment

If you are able to determine that a faulty piece of equipment is the reason for a work order, you can link the work order back to the piece of equipment. This section describes the process of linking a work order to a piece of equipment.

To link a work order to a piece of equipment:

- 1. Click **Go To > Work Orders > Work Order Dashboard**.
- 2. Use the **SEARCH** and/or column filters to locate the work order.
- 3. From the **Work Order** grid, click the **REQUEST** number hyperlink.
- 4. Scroll down to the **Equipment** section and click $\textcircled{ extbf{ exbf{ extbf{ extbf{ extbf{ extbf{ et$

S Purchase Orders 0	• ~
K Labor and Materials \$1,000.00	
Equipment	•
Files o	• ~

5. Enter the name, serial number, or asset tag of the piece of equipment. As you type, the system auto-suggests possible equipment matches.

- 6. Using the **Problem** field, enter the reason for linking the work order to a piece of equipment.
- 7. Click **SAVE** to complete the linking, or **SAVE AND ADD ANOTHER** to link the work order to another piece of equipment.

Adding a File to a Work Order

At any point during the lifecycle of a work order a file can be attached. Files can be in the form of PDFs, Word files, photos, and the like. This section describes how to add an electronic file or photo to the work order.

To add a file:

- 1. Click Go To > Work Orders > Work Order Dashboard.
- 2. Use the **SEARCH** and/or column filters to locate the work order.
- 3. From the **Work Order** grid, click the **REQUEST** number hyperlink.
- 4. Scroll down to the **Files** section and click $\textcircled{\bullet}$.

S Purchase Orders 0	• ~
Labor and Materials \$1,000.00	
Equipment	• ~
Files 0	Ð

- 5. Click **ADD FILES**, or drag and drop the file into the **Upload New File(s)** box.
- 6. (Optional) Click **Display to Tenants** to make the file appear on the tenant interface.
- 7. Click **SAVE**.

Adding a Comment to a Work Order

This section describes how to add a comment to an existing work order.

To add a comment to a work order:

- 1. Click **Go To > Work Orders > Work Order Dashboard**.
- 2. Use the **SEARCH** and/or column filters to locate the work order.
- 3. From the **Work Order** grid, click the **REQUEST** number hyperlink.

4. Click **ADD COMMENT**.

<i>(1</i>) GO TO	GO TO ADMIN			building	🔎 Support 🔵 🎴
#842 Berkshir	258098 - Inte re Crossing - (BEI DEI	erior Lights MO-CARL}	;		\oplus
ASSIGNED TO: ISSUE TYPE: FLAG: STATUS:	Unassigned Interior Lights – No Flag – New	BUILDING: COMPANY: FLOOR: SUITE: LOCATION:	Berkshire Crossing {BEI DEMO - CARL} N/A Berkshire Crossing Lobby	CREATED: SERVICE LEVEL: MUST OPEN BY:	06/13/2017 07:14 AM Priority 2 06/13/2017 08:29 AM
Details:	Lights need repla	aced	CHANGE STATUS	ADD COMMENT	II HOLD < SHARE 📅 PRINT

- 5. Enter your comment into the **Add Comment** box.
- 6. (Optional) Click **Keep Comment Internal** to hide the comment from the tenant interface.
- 7. Click **SAVE**.

Adding Labor to a Work Order

Labor can be added to a work order to track the time spent on the issue or to bill back tenants after services have been provided. This section describes how to add labor to a work order.

To add labor to a work order:

- 1. Click Go To > Work Orders > Work Order Dashboard.
- 2. Use the **SEARCH** and/or column filters to locate the work order.
- 3. From the **Work Order** grid, click the **REQUEST** number hyperlink.
- 4. Click the O icon located in the **Labor and Materials** section.
 - a. From the **NAME** drop down, select the name of the staff member or vendor who performed the labor.
 - b. Select the appropriate **LABOR RATE**.
 - c. Enter the labor **HOURS**.
 - d. (Optional) Select a MARKUP.
 - e. (Optional) Click **Billable** if this is a billable charge.
- 5. Click **SAVE** to add the labor or **SAVE AND ADD ANOTHER** to enter in additional charges.

Adding Materials to a Work Order

Materials can be added to a work order to track material spent on the issue or to bill back tenants after the work order has been completed. This section describes how to add material to a work order.

To add a material to a work order:

- 1. Click **Go To > Work Orders > Work Order Dashboard**.
- 2. Use the **SEARCH** and/or column filters to locate the work order.
- 3. From the **Work Order** grid, click the **REQUEST** number hyperlink.
- 4. Click the Solution within the **Labor and Materials** section.
 - a. (Optional) Select a category to narrow the list of materials.
 - b. Select the appropriate **MATERIAL**.
 - c. Enter the **QUANTITY** of material.
 - d. (Optional) Select a **MARKUP**.
 - e. (Optional) Click **Billable** if this is a billable charge.
- 5. Click **SAVE** to add the material or **SAVE AND ADD ANOTHER** to enter in additional charges.